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13. Jebel Quruntul

The Mount of Quruntul is situated 4 Km north-westof Jericho, west of Tell
es-Sultan. This mountain beneath 35 m of the sea level as a vertical preci-
pice. The precipice is disseminated of hermits’ caves and chapels. On the
highest point of the mount are the foundations of a fortress and of a little
chapel inside it.

The monastery

Standing on the tell of ancient Jericho and looking west, we can see the
cliff and a monastery built on it. This is the Quruntul ("the Forty"), the
Monastery of the Temptation (fig. 1). The earliest monastery was built in
the 6th century (Byzantine Period) above the two caves traditionally be-
lieved to be the ones where Jesus spent forty days and forty nights fasting
and meditating during the temptation of Satan, as the Gospel tells us. After
baptizing Jesus, John was arrested. Jesus, taking over from him, did not
immediately go up to Galilee to start his public mission. Rather, he is led by

F|g 1- V|ew of the Monastery of Temptatlon

the spirit into the desert, where the devil tempts him. The Byzantine mon-
astery was very simple in plan with a longitudinal navy, a lateral entrance
and an apse. The land upon which the modern monastery was built was
purchased by the Orthodox Church in 1874, and now it is the Monastery of
St. George.

The Chapels

The two chapels situated on the eastern cliff of the mountain, now under
the monastery, were visited by C.R. Conder and H.H. Kitchener during a
survey of the Western Palestine (1870-1877). The lower one was a cave
chapel reached through a hole in the roof of an excavated chamber. The
chapel above was covered with medieval frescoes on the cemented walls,
also having inscriptions and graffiti of numerous pilgrims on the frescoes.
The frescoes represented the Saviour enthroned, the Virgin, Saint John
Baptist, the angel Gabriel and Saint Sabas extracting a thorn from a lion
foot. The latter fresco served to date the frescoes as no earlier than 532
AD, when St. Sabas died. The second chapel was still in use as an her-
mitage, it was built of masonry, in front of a cave and the walls were cov-
ered with frescoes. In its west wall was a niche cut in the rock and a stone
marked with a cross. This niche supposed to show the exact point where
Jesus stood during the temptation (fig. 2).

Mount of Temptation

The Fortress

On the top of Jebel Quruntul an impressive fortress still stood today (fig.
3). The ancient name of the fortress was “Douka/Duyuk”, preserved to pre-
sent days in the name of the
village and the spring of ‘Ein
ed-Duyuk. The fortress is
probably the “"Dok” mentioned
as a fortress of the Templars
between Jericho and Bethle-
hem in the 13" century. On
the east of the fortress there is
a precipice; on the west a
fosse has been cut in the rock {
to separate the fort from the I
rest of the hill. The castle ap- -~
pears to occupied an irregular
rectangle of about 76 x 30 m
There is still a chapel inside with an apse. The main function of the fortress
was to guard the link road. Some cisterns and aqueducts remains from the
Roman and Hellenistic periods still rise near it.

The Caves

Several caves are located in the Jebel Quruntul area (fig. 4). The caves dat-
ed back from the Chalcolithic to the Islamic Period. They were used for var-
jous aims as burial caves, domestic settlements and repairs. Some of these
caves where explored in 2002 during a survey in the eastern cliff of the
mount. In one of these, the “El-Mafjar cave”, composed by two connected
chambers, was found remains related to different periods, from Chalcolithic
to Islamlc Period.
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Fig.2 - Niche where Jesus stood during the temptation.

Fig. 3 - Aerial view of the fortress.
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